

**Town of Nags Head
Planning Board
May 19, 2020**

The Planning Board of the Town of Nags Head met on Tuesday May 19, 2020. Due to Covid-19 restrictions, this meeting was held electronically/remotely utilizing the online ZOOM meeting platform. Members of the public were invited to attend the meeting using the ZOOM platform or app, or by calling in using a phone, and the meeting were conducted with the members participating by simultaneous communication.

Planning Director Michael Zehner began by explaining that the Town now has some statutory guidance on how to conduct these meetings which is covered under Section 166-19.24 of the North Carolina General Statutes. Mr. Zehner then proceeded to review these for the Board. Included under these guidelines are requirements on meeting notifications and instructing the public on how to access the meeting; making all documents to be considered during the meeting available to each member of the public body and requiring that all votes be done by roll call.

Mr. Zehner also discussed simultaneous communications and instructed members of the public and other audience members how they could participate via the zoom platform, email or by phone.

Mr. Zehner then turned the meeting over to Planning Board Chair Megan Vaughan who called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m. as a quorum was present.

Members Present

Megan Vaughan, Kristi Wright (Arrived at 10 AM), Molly Harrison, Meade Gwinn, Megan Lambert, Gary Ferguson, David Elder (Left about 10:45 AM)

Members Absent

None

Others Present

Via Zoom: Michael Zehner, Kelly Wyatt, Andy Garman, Holly White, and Lily Nieberding

Approval of Agenda

Chair Vaughan asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Meade Gwinn moved to approve as presented, David Elder seconded, and the motion passed unanimously via a roll call vote.

Public Comment/Audience Response

None

Following Public Comment, the Board took a brief recess to resolve some technical issues before proceeding.

Approval of Minutes

Chair Vaughan asked for a motion to approve the minutes of the April 21, 2020 meeting. Meade Gwinn moved to approve as presented, David Elder seconded, and the motion passed unanimously via roll call vote.

Action Items

Mr. Zehner noted that the applicant for Item 1 was delayed so the Board began by hearing Item 2.

Reconsideration of a Text Amendment to The Unified Development Ordinance pertaining to temporary uses or temporary alteration of uses related to declared emergencies.

Mr. Zehner explained that the proposed text amendment was intended to enact provisions within the Unified Development Ordinance allowing for temporary uses or the temporary modification of uses to address conditions during declared states of emergency or resulting from such emergencies.

Mr. Zehner noted that the Town had received communication from the Outer Banks Restaurant Association requesting the towns' consideration of regulatory changes that would allow for flexibility in restaurant operations in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

The proposed text amendment was developed in response to that request but was also informed by further discussions between Staff and OBRA as well as Mark Ballog (owner of Lucky 12), and John Harris (owner of Kitty Hawk Kites).

Mr. Zehner further noted that while this proposal was in response to this immediate emergency, Staff believes that this provision will have application during other emergencies.

The proposed text amendment would allow for the issuance of a Temporary Use Permit only during an emergency declared by the Mayor (pursuant to Town and State laws) or due to impacts associated with a declared emergency. In these instances, Temporary Use Permits would be authorized to be issued jointly by the Town Manager and UDO Administrator for temporary uses or the temporary modification of uses; the drafted provisions allow for broad latitude in their application, however, there are limitations on eligible uses and modifications, and ultimately, a Permit could be rejected for any activity or accommodation, in the opinion of the Town Manager and UDO Administrator, that would be contrary to the purposes of the emergency declaration and/or the interests of the public health, safety, and welfare. Mr. Zehner noted that staff did receive input with respect to food services, outdoor dining and food trucks from the Dare County Health Department

Mr. Zehner proceeded to review the proposed changes in more detail for the Board and stated that these permits can be issued for a period not to exceed 90 days and upon expiration all temporary accommodations shall cease or otherwise be considered in violation of the UDO as applicable. Permits may be extended by a request submitted no later than 10 business days prior to the expiration date. Mr. Zehner also explained how these temporary use permits affect non-conforming, permitted and conditional uses.

Mr. Zehner stated that staff wanted to make sure that they are allowing for things they had heard about and received inquiries about from business owners, such as allowing more flexibility for outdoor seating, car service and food trucks. Some of these things are allowed via the conditional use process but during a state of emergency such as this pandemic Staff didn't want to make someone go through a long process to effect a change. From an economic standpoint, the Town wants people to

be safe and practice social distancing and that means allowing businesses more flexibility in servicing their customers.

Planning Staff recommends adoption of the amendments as proposed but welcomes and will take into consideration the Planning Board's questions and feedback.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Ms. Lambert that while the proposal offered more flexibility for food trucks they would still now be allowed at beach accesses; however they might be issued a temporary use permit to park a Food Truck at a Shopping Center or Hotel, something that is currently not allowed.

Mr. Zehner also confirmed for Ms. Lambert that under a temporary use permit a business could be allowed additional signage. The Town wants to make sure that customers are aware of a business' limitations on operations, such as limited menus, delivery options and availability of outdoor seating. Staff would take it on a case by case basis and see what's currently allowed by the Ordinance and what may need a Temporary Use permit.

Mr. Zehner noted that Staff would like the flexibility to be able to issue a temporary use permit in cases where there is a condition that is outside the norm, rather than have to hand out a violation; as long as it is not contrary to public health, safety, and welfare.

Mr. Ferguson inquired if this proposal covered non-commercial uses such as churches or other types of organizations. Mr. Zehner confirmed that the proposed amendment does allow for a temporary use permit to be issued in residential districts for uses that are currently allowed in those districts. It would not allow uses that are currently not allowed in those districts. For example, a church located in a residential district could get a 90-day permit to have a food truck after church services.

Mr. Zehner explained for Mr. Gwinn that in the case of a church, they are having to modify their operations due to the restrictions placed by the State of Emergency such as limiting exposure. In other words, Staff are not issuing temporary use permits for an emergency rather than due to the impacts or effects of a State of Emergency.

Ms. Harrison noted that it looked like the Town had really thought it through and what they are presenting looked fair and good.

Mr. Zehner discussed with Chair Vaughan and the Board how capacity might be affected by outdoor seating. Mr. Zehner confirmed that the Temporary Use Permit would not allow a business to increase the allowed occupancy subject to their Dare County wastewater permit. Mr. Zehner also noted that the proposal does not allow an establishment to increase floor area.

Mr. Zehner also confirmed that the proposal adds flexibility to use existing parking area for outdoor seating.

Chair Vaughan stated she agreed with Ms. Harrison in that the proposal is well thought out and it is really important for the Town to do what they can do to respond to the current situation. Her only concern was with the possible safety issues with using parking areas for outside dining.

Mr. Zehner confirmed that each application would be taken on a case by case basis and could be reviewed by the Town Engineer, the Fire Chief and the Police Chief to ensure that all safety issues are being addressed.

Mr. Zehner explained that the proposed ordinance was drafted so that it doesn't allow someone to do something just because they think it's a great idea, there has to be a tie in to the impacts of the state of emergency that would result in them needing or wanting to modify their operations to meet certain requirements.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Chair Vaughan and the Board that they will work with applicants to ensure a quick turnaround on these permit requests. Depending on the request some may be issued on the spot after meeting with the applicant on-site.

Mr. Zehner confirmed that Staff is scheduled to present the proposed amendments to the Board of Commissioners on May 20, 2020, and if the Planning Board has issued a recommendation, request that the Board of Commissioners consider the scheduling of a public hearing for June 3, 2020.

Mr. Zehner noted that in the meantime, some requests might be handled via a crowd gathering permit.

Mr. Ferguson inquired if the Town would require site plan modification to go with the Temporary Use permit. Mr. Zehner explained that staff has administrative discretion in terms of what type of plans would be required and there are certain circumstances or situations that would require more information and vice versa. Mr. Zehner confirmed there would need to be some type of documentation whether it be a site plan, aerial or photos.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Chair Vaughan that the permit would be good for 90 days with the provision for an extension if needed. Mr. Zehner reminded the Board that staff wanted this proposal to be applicable for other (state of) emergencies not just the current; for instance, the need for temporary storage on-site following a hurricane.

Ms. Lambert suggested excluding menu boards from signage requirements. Mr. Zehner stated that if the Board was supportive, they could look at adding wording to the sign ordinance (outside of the temporary use permit) to exempt certain signage during a state of emergency.

David Elder moved to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment as presented. Meade Gwinn seconded, and the motion passed unanimously via roll call vote with Kristi Wright choosing to abstain as she had just arrived to the meeting.

Mr. Zehner confirmed that the applicant for the first action item (Kate Creef with Outlets Nags Head) was now present electronically, so the Board proceeded to hear Item 1.

Reconsideration of a Text Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance submitted by a property owner to expand the principal sale items from outdoor stands to include reservations and tickets for events/activities.

Mr. Zehner explained that the Planning Board had previously reviewed and made a recommendation before this item when to the Board of Commissioners for a public hearing. At the BOC meeting there were comments from the Board that resulted in the Board voting to have the item come back to the Planning Board for reconsideration; primarily with respect to limitations on signage and where the stands might be located on a site. Of concern were the appearance of the stands and the possibility of multiple stands.

Mr. Zehner stated that he had confirmed for the Commissioners that there were eleven (11) possible sites where these stands could be located and reminded the Board that this proposed amendment is not site-specific.

Mr. Zehner came up with some recommendations to address some of the concerns including: limiting the option for two stands to sites greater than a certain size; limiting signage to a total of fifteen (15) square feet for all outdoor stands; and clarifying where stands may be located on a site.

Mr. Zehner noted that in conversations with the applicant, Ms. Creef seemed amenable to these recommendations. Ms. Creef agreed saying they were willing to work within the requirements of the Town.

Mr. Zehner and Mr. Ferguson discussed the appearance and look of a stand with Mr. Zehner explaining that they could have a situation today with a stand that was fully allowed, and it was not to everyone's liking in terms of its appearance. Mr. Zehner noted that addressing the appearance of a stand was a broader issue than what is currently before the Board.

Mr. Zehner also discussed what is currently allowed vs. what is being proposed and addressed the concern why an outdoor stand is necessary when there are already retail shops and restaurants that offer this type of service.

Ms. Creef confirmed for Chair Vaughan that the intent of the stand was to enhance the property and the shopping experience for their customers, not to meet an unfulfilled need.

Chair Vaughan noted that she personally did not have a problem with the stands and didn't feel like they would ruin the appearance of the Town. Chair Vaughan noted that booking a charter fishing trip is no less inherent to Nags Head than buying fudge. Chair Vaughan stated her only concern would be the placement of the stand and making sure that there are no safety issues, such as being too close to the road.

After some discussion the Board agreed that the appearance of the stand is something that would be hard to legislate. The Board then discussed the number of stands and the location of the stands noting that the number of stands could depend on the size of property; maybe allowing two stands only on properties larger than a certain size. As far as location, having the stands no further than a certain distance from the building with the goal being to keep them away from the road.

Ms. Creef confirmed that their goal is not to draw people to the shopping center rather than offer an amenity to existing shoppers. In their case, their idea was to locate it in the breezeway rather than the parking lot.

Ms. Harrison noted that it seemed that they were all in agreement that they approved the proposal and that they don't want to see them too close to the road. Ms. Harrison noted that the item needed to move forward before the summer was over.

Ms. Creef noted that signage seemed to be an issue for the Commissioners, and she discussed reducing the total proposed square footage for signs which in turn might alleviate the "carnival" look concern.

Ms. Wyatt suggested adding language that would keep reservation stands integrated within the retail shopping center or group development within common areas such as walkways and not allowing them to be located within any part of the parking area.

Chair Vaughan stated she liked Ms. Wyatt's suggestion and stated that she did not have a problem with the Outlets having two stands because of the size of the location but that might not apply to other locations.

Mr. Zehner suggested adding language to base the number of stands on the size of the location; ie. two stands for locations larger than 10 acres.

Ms. Harrison stated that basing it on size seemed reasonable; larger sites can have two stands; smaller sites would have one.

Chair Vaughan moved to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment to expand principal sale items from outdoor stands to include reservations and tickets for events and activities, as previously recommended and with the following additional modifications: two stands shall only be allowed on sites with an area of 10 acres or greater; that stands used for reservations or ticket sales shall be located within shopping centers or group developments, such as within common area or walkways, and shall not be located within any parking area; and, that signage be limited to 15 square feet total regardless of the number of stands. Meade Gwinn seconded the motion. The motion passed 6-0, with Mr. Elder having left the meeting prior to the vote.

Report on Board of Commissioners Actions

Planning Director Michael Zehner gave a report on the Actions from the May 6, 2020 Board of Commissioner Meetings. Of note was a request for Public Hearing on the Consent Agenda for the Tutoring/Learning Facility which will be heard on June 3rd; the Public Hearing on the outdoor stands was held and that was remanded back to the Planning Board; the Public Hearing on corrections to the UDO was held and adopted without any changes; the Major Site Plan for Gone Coastal Villas was continued again to June 3rd; David Elder was reappointed for another three year term to the Planning Board; and the Preliminary Plat for Coastal Villas was also continued to June 3rd; Mr. Zehner anticipates that it will come back to the Planning Board at their June meeting.

Town Updates

None

Discussion Items

Continued Discussion of Legacy Establishments/Structures

Mr. Zehner stated that the Planning Board first discussed this item at their February meeting. He has since given the Board some more information and thoughts. The intent of this item is to address non-conforming uses or non-conforming structures that are seen as legacy or that define the character of the Town because of the use or because of the characteristics of the structure. The Town would like to see those continued and preserved and create some ability for that to happen. A lot of these places are non-conforming in terms of their use or in terms of setbacks or other zoning issues.

Does the Town want to create a mechanism that removes that non-conforming status or that allows the use to continue and allows someone to re-invest in the operation or expand that use or expand a building or continue reasonable repairs to a building? Mr. Zehner noted that one way to do this would be to categorize or look at the uses like they had previously done with non-conforming cottage courts. In that case, they would need to define the uses that they want to afford this protection to, and define the criteria that need to be met, in order to be eligible for those protections.

Mr. Zehner noted that another, maybe easier way would be through the creation of an overlay zoning district established for the purpose of protecting and preserving and allowing for expansion and evolution of legacy businesses and structures. They would need to define what those are, and then through some legislative action could rezone those properties that meet that definition, into that overlay district. Each rezoning request could come before the Planning Board and Board of Commissioners who would decide if that specific property or building met the requisite policy requirements.

Mr. Zehner stated they could start to maybe narrow down what are the types of uses that are more commonly going to be considered legacy businesses. Mr. Zehner gave the example of a restaurant that is non-conforming, and it's considered to be a legacy restaurant, defining to the character of the Town, and they want to make some modifications to it but are limited by their non-conforming status. They could request to be rezoned into this overlay district, where the non-conforming status would go away either because the use is permitted or there is more flexibility in the zoning requirements.

Mr. Zehner noted that doing it that way, through an overlay district allows for more discretion on the front end because you don't have to be as specific in terms of what criteria triggers that tool. Staff would like to start developing some type of overlay district and advance Comprehensive Plan policies valuing the preservation of legacy business, establishments, and structures.

Mr. Gwinn noted that there may be a scenario where multiple legacy businesses are concentrated such as at Whalebone Junction as well as some that are spread out throughout the town.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Mr. Gwinn that an overlay district could hypothetically cover the entire town and stated that they could make it so that properties are rezoned via request or the Town could proactively identify those properties and rezone them.

Mr. Ferguson agreed with Mr. Gwinn and raised the concern of spot zoning in cases where there might only be one or two legacy properties within a particular district; could this become a legal issue?

Mr. Zehner stated that for him spot zoning is more of a zoning action that results in the application of a zoning district in a singular way, devoid of any policy considerations. What staff is proposing is to develop a district and write a policy with the intent to protect and preserve legacy businesses and structures. Mr. Zehner noted that as long as they are meeting that intent and purpose spot zoning is not a question or concern.

Mr. Ferguson suggested looking at the non-conforming section of the zoning ordinance, not unlike what Staff did with non-conforming cottage courts and modifying that section and identifying what they consider legacy buildings and then developing some rules and regulations, that allow them to expand and improve.

Mr. Zehner stated that it was certainly an option but asked if they could come up with objective criteria to decide which businesses were considered legacy and which weren't. Mr. Zehner also noted that with this option those properties would retain their non-conforming status while if they were to create an overlay district, they would no longer be considered non-conforming. Mr. Zehner reminded the Board that a non-conforming status comes with limitations and restrictions and businesses could be negatively impacted by the status.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Chair Vaughan that it's possible that somebody could be conforming and still want to be delineated in that way (legacy business/overlay district) because it allows them to do something that they can't currently.

Mr. Ferguson suggested that if they identify a building that is considered to be of historical significance, then what they need to do is make efforts to try and preserve that building not necessarily making it conforming. They could have a section in the non-conforming ordinance that identifies each building in town that has a legacy status because it meets certain criteria. Mr. Ferguson believes that it would be simpler to do than create another overlay district.

The Board discussed whether it was the building or the use which made them a legacy property. Mr. Ferguson and Ms. Lambert both agreed that it is the structures more so than the use.

Principal Planner Holly White confirmed for Ms. Harrison that during Focus Nags Head the committee did develop a list of potential legacy properties based on criteria that they felt were important.

Mr. Zehner reiterated that it could be complicated to define what those characteristics are and what those standards are. In addition, there are implications if they continue to call those buildings non-conforming. If they have all of these properties that they are concerned about losing because of their non-conforming status, then why not just make them conforming especially if the non-conforming status is affecting the longevity and continued operation of those uses.

Ms. Harrison believes that the Town should make it easier for businesses to operate in Nags Head. If a business can't get loans because they are non-conforming, and they can't make improvements; Ms. Harrison would prefer to see a solution to that.

Mr. Zehner agreed stating they could deal with it in one or two ways, if they were no longer non-conforming it wouldn't apply or if they were still non-conforming but considered a legacy business, they could be exempt from certain limitations, which is what the Town currently does for non-conforming cottage courts.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Ms. Lambert that this would not remove FEMA non-conformities however some of those may no longer be an issue with the new flood maps.

Mr. Zehner confirmed for Ms. Harrison that the list that was developed as part of the Focus Nags Head project listed between 30 and 40 businesses that could be considered legacy businesses or structures. Mr. Zehner would need to review the list to determine which are conforming and which are not.

Mr. Zehner reminded the Board that the impetus for this discussion was the Blue Heron. It is both a non-conforming structure and a non-conforming use. And the original question was should the Town come up a provision in the ordinance that somehow allows for that property to be re-invested in, to evolve or to be expanded when currently all of those things are limited by zoning regulations? Could they create some zoning flexibility for that type of condition? Based on past experience if they can't, that structure may be lost.

The Board agreed that it is a complicated issue and if possible, they should keep it simple.

Mr. Zehner stated based on what he's heard from the Board today he could come back to them and present both options and go from there.

Continued Discussion of Residential Stormwater Regulations

Mr. Zehner explained that this was a continued discussion also from the February meeting which came out of the Board of Commissioners retreat. The Commissioners directed Staff to present their perspectives and the options identified by Staff to the Planning Board for review and consideration of any recommended actions.

During their discussion at the retreat, the Board of Commissions noted the following guiding principles for further review and consideration of the residential Stormwater regulations:

- Can our rules acknowledge that there are different site conditions – a system with flexibility?
- Retain form of landscape/minimize impacts to landscape.
- Look for common sense solutions.
- Don't place unjust burden on property owner.
- Can we offer a "carrot" to go with a stick? Create incentives.
- Do we need to define flooding – differentiate between "Nuisance" and "Problem Stormwater" issues.
- (Regulations) should not create additional problems.
- Should define problem we are trying to solve.

In their consideration and any recommendation to the Board of Commissioners, Staff would suggest that the Planning Board focus on whether the regulations and any potential changes address these perspectives and principles.

In their review, the Board of Commissioners also asked that the Planning Board consider the following options identified by Staff, to determine whether related actions may be necessary so that the regulations are more consistent with the aforementioned principles.

Mr. Zehner reviewed for the Planning Board the options that Staff presented to the Commissioners:

- Improve education and availability of resources
- Enhance ordinance incentives for preferred outcomes
- Provide an administrative option for engineering analysis to exempt or reduce requirements
- Provide more alternatives
- Provide for administrative waiver/variance
- Standardize dimensions and volume of BMP's
- Create a points-type program for BMP's and/or preferred outcomes, similar to design guidelines

Staff would recommend that the Planning Board discuss the residential Stormwater regulations, identifying their own perspectives regarding the intent of the regulations and whether the regulations achieve their intended purpose, align with the Commissioners' principles, and/or require adjustment.

Mr. Zehner stated that part of the concern is that there are outcomes or unintended consequences of these regulations and part of the issue is that over the last six months they may have been seeing some projects completed that were under the old ordinance vs. the new ordinance that didn't come into effect until November of 2019. It's important to be clear about what outcomes they can see from the new ordinance.

Generally, Mr. Zehner believes that positive results would be generated by pursuing those identified options to improve education and availability of resources and to enhance ordinance incentives for preferred outcomes.

Mr. Zehner noted that this may generate more discussion than they have time for today but was willing to answer any questions the Board may have. Mr. Zehner suggested that the Board may want to recommend that Staff continue to see how the new ordinance plays out and noted that one of the items that is on Staff's work plan is a low impact development demonstration project that they want to try to accomplish some place in town; for example showing what a rain garden looks like.

Mr. Zehner stated that Staff could focus on the education piece and come up with the steps they need to take to incentivize the preferred outcomes. Staff could then come back to the Planning Board and they can decide if it's something they want to recommend to the Commissioners. Mr. Zehner then discussed what incentives might look like.

The Board then discussed how Stormwater can affect not only the property owner but also their neighbors and even the Town. Even if the property owner does not have issues themselves, if the conditions continue, they could eventually be impacted so it's important to educate them and make them aware of correct Stormwater management practices. The Board agreed that education and awareness were critical.

Ms. Harrison suggested that they may want to get the schools involved in the educational piece.

Chair Vaughan also agreed that incentives were important and might help in maintaining landscapes, noting that there is too much lot clearing.

Mr. Gwinn noted that educating the homebuilders is important as well.

Continued Discussion of FY20-21 Planning & Development Department and Septic Health FY2020-2021 Strategic Work Plan

As noted in his Staff memo dated May 15, 2020, Mr. Zehner explained that in discussions with members of the Planning Board at their retreat in January 2020, the Board of Commissioners encouraged the Planning Board and Staff to work jointly on the development of a Work Plan for the next fiscal year in conjunction with the development of the budget, to establish priorities relating to planning and land use; in short, this Work Plan would be a collection of prioritized actions and activities serving as a strategic plan to implement various initiatives and plans.

Staff presented the concept of this Work Plan at the Planning Board's February meeting; the Board indicated their support for the effort.

Following that meeting, Staff developed an initial *Planning & Development Department and Septic Health FY2020-2021 Strategic Work Plan*, and then subsequent revisions, the most recent of which was included in Staff's memo for the Board's review and input. This initial draft *Strategic Work Plan* was developed based upon certain considerations and identified activity categories intended to highlight as well as focus the implementation of specific plans, the Vision, Goals, Key Concerns, and Guiding Themes.

In addition to the *Strategic Work Plan*, a *Budget Overview* was also developed for the Department as part of the development of the FY20-21 Budget; this *Budget Overview* was also included in the staff report and was been prepared to align with the *Strategic Work Plan*.

Staff would suggest that activities included in the Work Plan focus on implementing the following four (4) plans:

- o *Town of Nags Head Comprehensive Plan*,

- o *Vulnerability, Consequences, Adaptation, Planning Scenarios (VCAPS) Report,*
- o *Town of Nags Head Parks and Recreation Plan,* and
- o *Nags Head Pedestrian Plan*

Additional consideration should be given to activities contained in the Town's *Decentralized Wastewater Management Plan* and *Hazard Mitigation Plan*.

Mr. Zehner noted that the Work Plan should serve as a strategic plan to implement various initiatives and plans, but activities in the Work Plan should also work towards achieving the accepted vision and goals for the Town.

Mr. Zehner noted that in the process to develop the Comprehensive Plan, both *Key Concerns* and *Guiding Themes* were identified. For the purpose of the Work Plan these activities were categorized in at least one of five categories:

- o Community Character
- o Sustainability & Resiliency
- o Economic & Cultural Development
- o Hazard & Emergency Planning
- o Responsive & Transparent Government

These categories have been incorporated into the *Budget Overview* for the Department and serve as the basis for the Department's objectives for the next Fiscal Year.

Despite the above and previous work to establish this Work Plan, Staff is cognizant that this Plan will be affected by the Corona virus Pandemic and impacts to the Town's budget. Operating or CIP funds were anticipated to be used or sought for several projects, but the Town will not be considering CIPs at this time. Staff is actively exploring and applying for grants to offset budget shortfalls.

Staff would recommend that the Planning Board review the information outlined above, and specifically the implementation matrixes from the four (4) plans, as well as the initial *Planning & Development Department and Septic Health FY2020-2021 Strategic Work Plan*, and provide feedback as to whether the Plan sufficiently implements and advances specific plans, the Vision, Goals, Key Concerns, and Guiding Themes in a strategic manner.

Chair Vaughn noted that it was nice to have the plans laid out like this because it gives it a structure and will help keep them focused.

The Board then discussed Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations and the Town's recycling program and how they might tie into the theme of Sustainability and Resiliency.

Mr. Zehner noted that the intent of the work plan was to recognize Staff's bandwidth and limited resources and to focus priorities. If the Board feels like projects on this strategic work plan are not priorities vs. something else, it's good to know that. Are there things that we want to discuss but we know that we have limited ability to do that or do they rise to the level of superseding other items on the plan? Is Recycling a Planning Board issue or is it a Board of Commissioners or Administration issue?

After some further discussion Mr. Zehner suggested putting Recycling as an agenda item for their next meeting and Staff may be able to research some practices that other communities have in place.

Mr. Gwinn noted that the Board of Commissioners is working on this issue and maybe they need to wait and see what the Commissioners are doing about it. It is a big issue on a much larger scale than just the Town. Before they try to tackle this issue, they should see what the Commissioners think.

Mr. Zehner agreed saying that he can present it back to the Board of Commissioners and let them know that the Planning Board is interested in how the Town moves forward with respect to recycling and that they are available to assist and investigate solutions.

Planning Board Member's Agenda

Mr. Ferguson suggested that the Board members take a ride through Nags Head Acres to look at a house that was recently built on Bridge Lane as a sample of what they don't want to see as far as Stormwater Management. This was an option that a builder/developer decided to take advantage of. Mr. Zehner clarified that the house was built under the old ordinance and the rock that is associated with that project is in the right of way and is not a result of the Stormwater regulations but rather the Streets regulations. Mr. Zehner will email the Board Members some other addresses that are more representative of what's being done under the new ordinance.

Mr. Ferguson and the Board also discussed Board member compensation.

Planning Board Chairman's Agenda

None

Adjournment

A motion to adjourn was made by Megan Lambert. The time was 12:24 AM.

Respectfully submitted,

Lily Campos Nieberding